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NOTICE TO CONSULTANTS 
Mountainland Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) under the Mountainland 
Association of Governments (MAG), in partnership with Wasatch Front Regional 
Council (WFRC), Utah Transit Authority (UTA), and Utah Department of 
Transportation (UDOT), is soliciting the services of qualified firms/individuals to 
perform consulting services for the following project: Regional Zero-Fare Transit 
Study. 

A. Summary Information 

Please direct all pre-submission questions regarding this project to Chad Eccles 
(ceccles@mountainland.org). 

Project 

Project Regional Zero-Fare Transit Study 

Source(s) of Funding Federal, State, and Local 

Budget To be determined 

Project Team 

Project Partners ● Mountainland Association of Governments (MAG) 
● Utah Department of Transportation (UDOT) 
● Utah Transit Authority (UTA) 
● Wasatch Front Regional Council (WFRC) 

MAG Project Manager 
(PM) 

Chad Eccles 
Project Manager 
Mountainland Association of Governments 
586 East 800 North 
Orem, UT 84097 
(801) 229-3824 
ceccles@Mountainland.org 

Dates 

Posting of the RFQ January 13, 2022 

Submission Deadline for 
RFQ 

February  3, 2022 
Responses submitted after this deadline will not be accepted. 

Questions Regarding the January 18, 2022 

mailto:ceccles@mountainland.org


Regional Zero-Fare Transit Study 
Area Transportation Study - RFQ 

4 
 

RFQ Due 

Clarifications to RFQ 
Posted 

January 20, 2022 

Optional Oral Interview The Selection Team may determine that it is necessary to have 
interviews in order to make a selection. These interviews may 
be conducted in person or over the phone. 

Notice to Proceed Date To be issued by MAG after contract execution. 

Project Completion Date Approximately six (6) months from Notice to Proceed. 

Instructions 

Submittal Instructions Responses to this Request for Statement of Qualifications must 
be contained in a single PDF document submitted by email to 
the MAG Project Manager, Chad Eccles 
(ceccles@mountainland.org), prior to the submission deadline. 
Acknowledgment of receipt will be sent. 
 
The RFQ has a maximum page limit of five pages, not including 
cover, cover letter, or resumes. 
 
Questions and other correspondence regarding this Request 
for Statements of Qualifications must be emailed to MAG 
Project Manager, Chad Eccles (ceccles@mountainland.org) no 
later than COB on January 18, 2022. Any clarifications or 
additional information will be shared online on MAG’s Request 
for Proposals webpage by January 20, 2022: 
https://mountainland.org/zerofareRFQ/ 

Cost Discussion This is a Qualifications-Based Selection (QBS) process based 
on the Brooks Act (40 U.S.C. 11). Cost is NOT a factor in the 
selection ranking of a consultant to provide services. “As 
specified in 23 CFR 172.5(a)(1) all price/cost-related items 
which include, but are not limited to direct salaries/wage rates, 
indirect cost rates, and other direct costs are prohibited from 
being used…” These discussions are prohibited and may not be 
considered in the evaluation of RFQs as part of this Selection 
Process.  
 
DO NOT include any reference to project-specific costs in the 
RFQ. Any RFQ submitted with ANY discussion of project-
specific cost (other than cost control measures) WILL BE 
DISQUALIFIED. 

 

mailto:ceccles@mountainland.org
mailto:ceccles@mountainland.org
https://mountainland.org/zerofareRFQ/
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B. Study Description 
Some transit agencies have considered the implications of revising their fare structure. One 
suggestion 
that is often posed is eliminating fares altogether. The Utah Transit Authority (UTA) has done this 
on key bus rapid transit (BRT) and special service areas with some success. The decision to do 
this system-wide may have far-reaching implications on the entire transportation system. In Utah, 
the primary mode of transportation for most trips is the personal vehicle. Many of these trips are 
made with a single occupant (the driver). This method of travel has led to ongoing, sizable 
investments of tax dollars being made to maintain or expand roadway capacity to accommodate 
increasing auto use as the Region grows. Utah has also invested heavily in transit capital projects 
and getting more people on transit presents a more efficient way to utilize roadway and transit 
capacity. Eliminating fares may remove some barriers to riding transit and could increase 
utilization of the transit system through attracting new customers as well as increasing the 
number of transit trips taken by current customers. 
 
It is important to regional transportation agencies to investigate all outcomes, including benefits 
and impacts, of going to a zero-fare transit system. This study seeks the answers to the following 
questions (organized within a few categories):  
 
Goals of Fares 

● What are the benefits and drawbacks of a zero-fare system? 
● Why do we charge a fare? 
● Why should we not charge a fare? 
● What are the benefits and drawbacks of having an open versus a closed system, i.e. some 

pass required even if no cost to the user? 
● Are fares and security directly related? 
● Are there societal benefits or impacts?  

 
Service Levels 

● How can fare revenue be replaced so as not to affect service levels? 
● Should service levels change if zero-fare is implemented? Why and how? 
● Does a zero-fare transit system lead to increased access to important community 

resources (e.g. healthcare, grocery, schools, work)? 
● What are the implications on paratransit, vanpool, microtransit services, or other existing 

or future innovative transit services if UTA implemented a zero-fare system? 
 
Ridership 

● Would eliminating fare collection on the UTA system create a large enough incentive to 
reduce single-occupant vehicle demand on Utah’s congested roadways by a meaningful 
amount? 

● If higher ridership is expected, how would higher ridership impact operations, 
maintenance, service levels, wear/tear, and the ability to fund the service? 
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● Would a zero-fare transit system improve air quality and environmental health in the 
Region? 

● Is there any correlation between zero-fare transit and regional socio-economic benefits? 
 

Rider Profiles 
● What are UTA’s rider profiles in terms of how each would benefit or not from a zero-fare 

transit system? 
● Could zero-fare be prioritized for marginalized peoples/communities? 
● Could zero-fare advance transportation equity in the transportation network? 
● What is the scale of new markets of riders who might use transit if the fare barrier is lifted? 

 
Transit Agency Jobs and Operations 

● What impact does zero-fare have on existing employment positions at UTA? 
● What are the zero-fare operations and maintenance implications amid bus operator 

shortages during COVID and other emergency/crisis situations? 
● How have other transit agencies accommodated, changed or eliminated jobs and 

processes when fares and their collection were eliminated? 
● What are the savings in the upcoming ticket vending machine replacement project and the 

larger overall cost of collection to UTA if a zero-fare system is implemented? 
 
It is anticipated that the consultant will research the latest literature, policies, and case studies on 
the 
subject as well as incorporate qualitative evaluation to inform the partners of current trends, 
successes, 
failures, and any unexpected benefits or challenges. Are there examples of partnerships or 
legislation 
that supported zero-fare? Proposers should explain their approach and methodology and the data 
necessary to answer the questions above. 
 
Because a zero-fare transit system would be of interest to many internal and external 
stakeholders to UTA, the consultant should prepare an engagement strategy to communicate and 
gather input from various 
groups as part of the approach to the study. 
 
UTA has conducted an internal examination of the costs of fare collection and farebox recovery. 
That 
data will be available for funding analyses required to determine costs and benefits and to be 
incorporated into the overall evaluation and final report. 
 
Tasks for this study include, but are not limited to: 

● Literature review and case studies 
● Modeling of potential impacts of eliminating fare collection related to both vehicular traffic 

and transit ridership (Regional Travel Demand Modeling of both vehicular traffic and 
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transit ridership could be provided by MAG and WFRC for the vendor to use in analyzing 
potential impacts of zero-fare collection) 

● Analysis of a broad range of potential costs and benefits of eliminating fare collection 
● Analysis of any non-revenue benefits and impacts  
● Implementation methodology, including minimum requirements for implementation  
● Final report 

 

C. Budget 

The budget for this study will be negotiated with the highest-scoring consultant based on the 
agreed-upon scope of work, following an award. 

 

D. Stipulations for Statements of Qualifications 

Required Completion and Acceptance Criteria 

Progress payments will be made for work in progress. Final invoice payment shall be made after 
all of the work has been completed and the final estimate, project records, and documentation 
have been received and accepted by MAG as accurate and complete. 

Applicable Federal and State Regulations 

The Consultant shall conform to all applicable state and federal regulations. 

Debarment Certification 

Federal regulations require certification by prospective participants (including contractors, 
subcontractors, and principals) as to current history regarding debarment, eligibility, indictments, 
convictions, or civil judgments. The selected Consultant will be required to certify in accordance 
with contract Standard Terms and Conditions. 

Authorization to Begin Work 

Notice to proceed will be given by MAG as soon as the contract is approved, signed by all parties, 
and returned to MAG. The selected Consultant can expect an informal Notice to Proceed via 
email, followed by a copy of the executed contract mailed to the Consultant’s address of record 
at MAG. 

Required Key Personnel Qualification 

The Consultant shall be responsible to ensure all personnel proposed under this RFQ be qualified 
through training, experience, and appropriate certification for the tasks assigned and shall have a 
working knowledge of industry-standard practices.  
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Required Availability of Key Personnel 

When Consultants list personnel in the RFQ, key personnel, and their roles should be identified. 
The consultant is agreeing to make the personnel available to complete work on the contract at 
whatever level the project requires. 

Required RFQ Contents 

The RFQ from the Consultant should contain the information identified in the attached Appendix 
A:  Guidelines for Preparing Statement of Qualifications. 

RFQ Evaluation Procedures 

The RFQ will be evaluated by the Selection Team in accordance with the criteria described in 
Section E: Selection Process. 

Conditions of Statements of Qualifications 

All costs related to the preparation of the RFQ and any related activities such as interviews and 
contract negotiations are the sole responsibility of the Consultant. The MAG assumes no liability 
for any costs incurred by Consultants throughout the entire selection process. 

Disposition of RFQs 

RFQs and their content become the property of MAG and its study partners and are treated as 
protected documents. The RFQ of the successful Consultant shall be open to public inspection for 
a period of one year after the award of the contract. RFQs of Consultants who are not awarded 
contracts shall not be open to public inspection and will be destroyed once the contract is 
executed with another consultant. 

If the Consultant selected for the award has required in writing the nondisclosure of trade secrets 
and other proprietary data so identified, the MAG Project Manager shall examine the request in 
the RFQ to determine its validity prior to award of the contract. If the parties do not agree as to 
the disclosure of data in the contract, the MAG Manager shall inform the Consultant in writing 
what portion of the RFQ will be disclosed and that, unless the Consultant withdraws the RFQ, it 
will be disclosed. If the Consultant withdraws their RFQ, the Consultant will not be awarded the 
contract. 

Ownership of Documents 

All model files, scripts, networks, GIS files, plans, data, maps, etc. prepared or obtained by the 
Consultant as a result of working on this contract, shall be delivered to and become the property 
of MAG. 
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E. Selection Process 

Award will be given to the highest ranked firm, based on the selection criteria listed below. The 
highest-ranked firm will be contracted for cost, based on the agreed-upon scope of work. If this 
cost is deemed unreasonable, or not within the project budget, MAG may contract with the next 
qualified RFQ. 

RFQ Selection Criteria 

1. Project Team: (50 Points): The Selection Team will evaluate how well the qualifications and 
experience of the members of the project team relate to Section B: Project Information. The RFQ 
should include: 

● Project team flow charts including sub-consultants, if applicable. 

● Description of the qualifications and experience of key personnel on the project team. 
(NOTE: Do not include percentages of availability as this may be misinterpreted.)  

● MAG recommends that firms include a list of relevant projects the team has completed, 
which should include the following items.  

○ Name of Project Manager  
○ Year  
○ Type of Project  
○ Project Name  
○ Project Location  
○ Project Description  
○ Services Performed/Project Role  
○ Client  
○ Reference Contact and Telephone Number  

2. Capability of the Consultant: (50 Points): Describe the team’s experience working together to 
successfully provide similar services.  

The Selection Team will evaluate the Consultant's capability to meet Section B: Project 
Information. The RFQ should: 

● Demonstration of overall qualification to meet Section B: Project Information-specific work  

● Describe specific expertise that differentiates your firm's capabilities to perform this type 
of work. The selection team will be looking for details on specific areas of expertise  

● Demonstrate the quality of work your firm upholds, and the overall performance record of 
the proposed project team. 

● Describe your firm’s internal quality and cost control procedures.  

Consultants must meet a minimum composite score of 60 points and no fewer than 30 points for 
each criteria. 
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APPENDIX A 
 Guidelines for Preparing Statement of Qualifications 

 
 
 

Five-page maximum length; cover, cover letter, and resumes are not included in the total page 
count. Submittals shall be submitted via email.  

● Cover: Content limited to image, project title, firm name, and logos. One page. 
● Cover Letter: One page. 
● Consultant Team: Relevant experience of proposed project personnel. Limit three pages. 
● Project Understanding, Limit two pages. 
● Resumes: No limit. 
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